
Monon Town and Township Public Library  
Board of Trustees  

Meeting Agenda // April 11, 2022, 4PM EST 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Approval of March 14 Board Meeting Minutes  
3. Claims/Payroll for March 2022/Treasurer’s Report 
4. Librarian’s Report 

 
 
 

5. Personnel Report – Custodian changes - contract/rate of pay    
6. Old Business  

a. None  
 
 
 

7. New Business 
a. None 

 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Adjournment 
The next meeting is Monday, May 9, 2022 at 4PM.  



  Monon Town and Township Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting 
Monday, March 14, 2022, 4PM  

 
Present: Austin Stroud, Michele Buswell, Clark Raver, Jennifer Annis, Julie Hart, Lexi 
Reagan, Rosemary Cooley (arrived at 4:25pm)  
Absent:  Desi Kyle 
 
Call to Order: Called to order by Clark Raver at 4:05PM.  
 
Minutes - Jennifer Annis made a motion to approve the February 14 meeting minutes 
and Michele Buswell seconded. All were in favor, and the motion passed.  
 
Finances/Treasurer’s Report - Julie Hart made the motion to accept the financial 
reports and sign the claim register. Jennifer Annis seconded the motion. All were in 
favor. The motion passed.   
 
Librarian’s report -The annual financial report is done, so we’re now done with all of 
the 2021 reports as well as the five year audit (2016-2020).  The annual financial report 
is included in this packet of information. 

The front entrance brick work was finally completed, so the old book drop on the 
building is covered up. We still have some work to do with the concrete on that front 
entrance. 

Austin submitted a letter of proposal for an Indiana Historical Society Heritage Support 
Grant. He submitted this on behalf of the Monon Civic Preservation Society since you 
must be a 501c3 to apply. He asked for over $17,000 that would microfilm about 40 
years of newspapers, allow us to purchase a microfilm reader, and view it on a 
computer at the library. The full grant application is due on April 28, and we found out 
that we were invited to submit a full application. Austin also submitted a $3000 grant, 
due on March 11, through the Community Foundation of White County. This will allow 
the library to bound into books our 2004-2021 Monon News and Review newspapers 
that are sitting in boxes.  As part of this, Austin is asking the library to approve spending 
up to $1000 out of our Library Improvement Reserve Fund (LIRF). This would make the 
grant worth about $2000, and the library would pay $1000 for the $3000 total.  Having 
the library contributing toward the project allows us to not ask for as much money, and 
in turn we’re more likely to receive support from the community foundation. Michele 
Buswell made a motion to approve spending $1000 out of LIRF toward bounding the 
2004-2021 Monon News and Review newspapers, and Julie Hart seconded. All were in 
favor, and the motion passed.  



We’re still working on getting our library of things up and going (a lot of prep work to be 
ready for patrons to check out). Barbara and Peggy do have everything setup for the 
seed library, and we will have some programs to kick this off in April.  

We’re starting ESL classes at the library in April.  Initially, this will be the 1st and 3rd 
Wednesday of the month but this may become more frequent depending on the interest. 
Lexi Reagan mentioned that Holly Sanchez is bilingual and Roseanne Cortez as 
possibilities to ask about volunteering.   

The new website went live on March 1. The website was down the night before, but 
otherwise the launch went well. The new and larger Indiana Overdrive consortium also 
went live on March 1, but it is taking a while for everything to fully transfer over. 

Austin is seeking approval to condense his schedule to four longer days with the current 
gas prices. Michele Buswell made a motion to approve this change as staffing allows, 
and Jennifer Annis seconded.  All present were in favor, and the motion passed.  

Austin is seeking approval to spend up to $100 out of the gift fund for the staff training 
day on Friday, April 15. Julie Hart made a motion to approve spending $100 from the 
gift fund, and Rosemary Cooley seconded.  All were in favor, and the motion passed.  

From Barbara: 

There is an exciting new outreach program for our children’s area! Barbara will be 
visiting classrooms to read stories which will help the children with their AR testing and 
comprehension skills. Hopefully this will continue to build a connection for the students 
and teachers with our public library.  Five teachers were interested in the program, from 
Pre-Kindergarten through 5th grade. Barbara will be bringing the story time to them once 
or twice a week. This bridge with the youth will bring more children to our 2022 Summer 
Reading program and fill a need within the classrooms.  

 
 
Personnel Report - We need to discuss hiring two related family members as well as 
set a rate of pay for custodian, and decide the classification of new hires. Rosemary 
Cooley made a motion to approve hiring both Lopez-Sandoval sisters for $8/hour for the 
desk and cleaning. Lexi Reagan seconded, and all were in favor. The motion passed.  
 
Old Business - None 
 
New Business -  
Austin shared the 2021 Annual Financial Report that was submitted/due on March 1.  



 
Julie Hart made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5PM and Lexi Reagan seconded.  
All present were in favor, and the motion passed.   
   
The next meeting:  Monday, April 11, at 4PM.     
 
_______________________   _______________________ 
Clark Raver, President    Rosemary Cooley, Secretary  
 

 
 

 





























Librarian’s Report – April 11, 2022 
 

Some minor repairs are needed to the elevator, so Austin has attached a quote to this librarian’s report. 
We went ahead and sent the first half of the payment even though this exceeds the typical amount we 
can do without board approval. This was just time sensitive.  We could switch this to be paid out of LIRF 
or Rainy Day if the board approves.  The elevator is still working fine, it’s just that eventually this needs 
done.    

We’re still waiting to hear back on the grants Austin has submitted to help with the newspaper 
microfilming, microfilm reader, and bounding the newer newspapers.  The application for one isn’t due 
until April 28, but the Community Foundation of White County one is fully submitted.  

We’ve made available several of the items in the Library of Things so far, with a few more to go. The 
reception has been good on social media, but we haven’t seen much checkout activity yet.  

We had our first ESL class on Wednesday, April 6 with (will insert number in the minutes) in attendance. 
These will meet on the 1st and 3rd Wednesday of the month for now.  

From Barbara: 

Our Outreach Reading program at the North White Elementary school is working out well. The students 
and teachers have been very welcoming. During the month of March.  23 classrooms were visited 
reaching 575 students.  The classrooms range from Pre-Kindergarten through 5th grade. These visits will 
continue on through the month of April. Two books are read during each visit and the students are 
brought up to date on library programs, how to get a library card and even what the library looks like 
and where to find it.    

The Seed Library is ready to go! The Vegetable Gardening program will officially start the seed program. 
The comments on Facebook have been very positive so we are hoping for a nice group of community 
members on Saturday.  With a library card each household can withdrawal 6 different seed packets to 
start their own garden. We will be encouraging them to save seeds from their garden for the following 
year plus to bring the library seeds so that our Seed Library will grow. 

 



Collection Area March 2022 Circulation March 2021 Circulation March 2020 Circulation
Adult Fiction 218 154 183
Adult Non-Fiction 51 30 35
Adult/Juvenile DVDs/Videos 176 89 88
Adult/Juvenile Audiobooks 9 6 7
Magazines 35 47 37
Juvenile Fiction 185 47 122
Juvenile Non-Fiction 31 18 7
Young Adult/Teen 21 18 35
Video Games 4 0 0
Hoopla 28 21 0
Overdrive (ebooks/e-audio) 164 242 217
Hotspots 24 8 0
Library of Things 1 0 0
Total Circulation (# of checkouts) 947 680 731













Monon Town and Township Public Library 
 

Cleaning Service Contract Requirements  
 

Scope of Work 
(April 18 – December 31) 

 
OVERVIEW 

 
• The cleaning contract for the Monon Town and Township Public Library is in the 8,000 

sq. ft. building located at 427 North Market Street in Monon.   
 

• Cleaning is to be done on a routine schedule weekly during or after business hours. 
This schedule may need adjusted if the Library is having or participating in a special 
event that falls outside of the normal library schedule 

 
• Cleaning supplies and equipment are provided by the Library, and the contractor 

should notify the Library Director when more supplies are needed.  
 

• Cleaning service contractors are expected to be able to read and interpret labels on 
cleaning products and observe safe use and handling of cleaning products.   

 
• Cleaning service contractors should not enter the Library except to perform their work 

and should not bring non-personnel or family members into the library during their 
contract work hours. Cleaning service contractors may subcontract as needed with the 
Library Director’s approval. Cleaning service contractors are to secure the building 
when they leave the premises.   

 
• Cleaning service contractors are not to bother private areas such as desk tops, 

drawers, lockers, food or mail slots, etc. except as needed to perform their work. 
Cleaning service contractors are not expected to tidy up after staff – arranging papers, 
turning off computers, or washing dishes. 

 
• Library management would expect and appreciate notification of building problems 

such as leaks or needed repairs. However, it is up to the Library Director to call in 
outside assistance unless the cleaning service contractor is notified otherwise in an 
emergency.  

 
• If unable to make it to the Library due to illness, vacation, an emergency, or dangerous 

weather, cleaning service contractors are expected to notify the Library Director as 
soon as possible. The hours may be made up in the same week, or a decrease in pay 
can be worked around (i.e. if working three weeks of the month, the monthly pay would 
decrease to $225 instead of $300 for four weeks of work with a rate of pay at 
$75/week).    

 
 
 

Cleaning Service Contract Requirements 
 



 2 

STAFF & PUBLIC AREAS 
 

WEEKLY 
 

• Sweep downstairs children’s area  
• Sweep Breakroom & Program room 
• Mop entry way & bathrooms, children’s employee bathroom  
• Sweep upstairs back half, including behind desk  
• Clean upstairs front half, including offices & stairs  
• Clean women’s bathroom & upstairs bathroom  
• Clean men’s bathroom  
 

 
AS NEEDED OR MONTHLY 
 

• Dust Upstairs and Downstairs   
• Pour water down drains 
• Dust in window frames  
• Clean glass entry doors upstairs  
• Clean glass entry doors downstairs  
• Sweep outside stairways 

 
 

QUALITY STANDARDS 
 

1. Frequency:  Frequency requirements are minimum requirements.  All tasks to be 
performed as frequently as specified and as needed to maintain a clean condition.  For 
example, tasks that are designated “WEEKLY” are to be performed at each visit. 

 
2. General Standards:  The achievement of the desired standard of cleanliness will result 

in an almost complete absence of visible soil.  In order to maintain the facilities in this 
condition, Contractor will remove any visible soil which is found as a result of inspection.   

 
3. Solid waste collection:  All solid waste in the building shall be collected and removed 

to designated disposal areas.  Library staff will remove the waste from the building as 
needed.  

 
4. Wet mopping:  Floors shall be free of streaks, mop strand marks, and skipped areas. 

Walls, baseboards, and other surfaces shall be free of splash stains and markings from 
the equipment.  Mops and buckets will be emptied and thoroughly rinsed immediately 
after use in restrooms and before use in any other area. 

 
5. Spot cleaning:  Smudges, marks or spots shall be removed without causing 

discoloration of the surface. 
 

6. Dusting:  Corners, crevices, moldings, and ledges shall be free of dirt, debris, and dust. 
Furniture will be dusted around computers. 

 
7. Maintenance Closet:  Closet shall be maintained in a clean, orderly and safe condition 

at all times. 



 3 

 
8. Materials and Equipment:  The Contractor shall use cleaning products and equipment 

which are effective and safe for fixtures, furnishings, and finishes in their particular 
applications. Cleaning products should be in clearly marked containers.   

 
9. Level of care:  Contractor shall exercise due care at all times to ensure that cleaning 

products and practices do not cause damage to finishes, furnishings, or fixtures.   
 
 

LIABILITY  
 

As a contractor that is issued a 1099, you are not covered by the library’s insurance policy for 
workplace injuries, accidents, etc. It is expected that you will obtain your own coverage to 
meet your needs in this regard.  
 

RATE OF PAY 
 

For the remainder of the 2022 Budget Year (April 18, 2022 – December 31, 2022), the Monon 
Town and Township Public Library Board of Trustees has set the flat rate of pay as $75/week 
with the expectation of working 5-10 hours/week. This rate meets in the middle at 7.5 hours 
for $10/hour. If electing to be paid monthly, payment is to be made to the contractor on the 
last day of each month for $300. If electing to be paid semi-monthly, payment is to be made 
to the contractor on the 15th day of the month and the last day of the month for $150 each 
time. Please select the pay frequency you prefer for 2022 below by initialing in one of the 
fields:   
 
_________I want to be paid monthly.    _________I want to be paid semi-monthly.  
   

AGREEMENT TO SCOPE OF WORK/CONTRACT FOR 2022 
 
By signing below, you agree to the terms of this scope of work and contract for the 2022 
budget year at the Monon Town and Township Public Library. If at any time you wish to 
cancel your contract with the library, please inform the Library Director in writing as soon as 
possible. By signing, you also understand that this contract is reviewed annually by the 
Monon Town and Township Public Library Board of Trustees, and renewal and budget 
amounts will be decided upon by the Board.   
 
 
____________________     ____________        ____________________     ____________           
Contractor Signature        Date                   Library Director Signature          Date  
   


	MeetingAgenda_4.11.22
	March 14, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes 
	Claims&FinancialReports
	LibrariansReport_4.11.22
	March2022CirculationStats
	Sheet1

	repairworkorder_mononlibrary_elevator
	cleaning_service_scope_contract

